

No 2006 - 13 July

Short-Term Fiscal Spillovers in a Monetary Union

Agnès Bénassy-Quéré

Short-term fiscal spillovers in a monetary union

Agnès Bénassy-Quéré

No 2006 – 13 July

Support from the CIREM is gratefully acknowledged

Contents

1	Introduction	8
2	The model	10
3	Tax and spending spillovers	14
4	Interest rate smoothing	17
5	Conclusion	22
6	References	23

SHORT-TERM FISCAL SPILLOVERS IN A MONETARY UNION

SUMMARY

In this paper, a simple, two-country, static model is developed in order to analyze short-run fiscal spillovers in a monetary union, depending on (*i*) the way fiscal policy is implemented (expenditures versus net taxes), (*ii*) the strength of the supply-side channel of tax policies compared to the demand-side channel, and (*iii*) the extent of central bank accommodation. The analysis relies on two IS curves, two Phillips curves and an optimization behavior from the central bank. Fiscal policy consists in either a spending shock, which impacts on demand, or a tax shock, which impacts on both demand and prices. Fiscal shocks are assumed to be exogenously implemented in country 1, and their effect on output gaps and prices in both countries is analyzed.

It is shown that both a spending expansion and a tax cut produce positive spillovers on foreign output provided the central bank accommodates the shock, except if tax cuts have large supply-side effects. In this case, the foreign country does not benefit from a fall in the interest rate (because of interest-rate smoothing), whereas it suffers from loss in price-competitiveness.

If the central bank does not accommodate the shock, the spillovers of a fiscal expansion are generally negative: the common interest rate rises until aggregate demand is perfectly stabilized, which entails an output loss in the foreign country. However fiscal spillovers can be positive in the case of a tax cut because induced disinflation reduces or even reverses the reaction of the central bank.

Due to financial liberalization, it is possible that demand-side channels of fiscal policy have become less powerful compared to supply-side channels, because of higher ability of households to disconnect consumption from current disposable income. This has important implication for fiscal spillovers. For a spending expansion, the spillover effect is likely to become less positive. In turn, the rising importance of supply-side effects relative to demand-side effects is likely to turn positive spillovers into negative ones following a tax cut, at least if the central bank an interest-smoothing behavior.

ABSTRACT

In this paper, a simple, two-country, static model is developed in order to analyze short-run fiscal spillovers in a monetary union, depending on (i) the way fiscal policy is implemented (expenditures versus net taxes), (ii) the strength of the supply-side channel of tax policies

compared to the demand-side channel, and (*iii*) the extent of central bank accommodation. It is shown that both a spending expansion and a tax cut produce positive spillovers on foreign output provided the central bank accommodates the shock, except if tax cuts have large supply-side effects. If the central bank does not accommodate the shock, the spillovers of a fiscal expansion are generally negative. However fiscal spillovers can be positive in the case of a tax cut because induced disinflation reduces or even reverses the reaction of the central bank. Due to financial liberalization, it is possible that demand-side channels of fiscal policy have become less powerful compared to supply-side channels. To the extent that interest-rate variations are smooth, this could reduce the positive spillover of a spending expansion while turning the spillover of a tax cut into the negative territory.

JEL classification: E61, E62, F41.

Keywords: Fiscal policy, theoretical model, spillovers, monetary union, short run.

EXTERNALITÉS DE POLITIQUE BUDGÉTAIRE À COURT TERME EN UNION MONÉTAIRE

Résumé

On développe ici un modèle simple statique à deux pays pour analyser les externalités à très court terme de la politique budgétaire en union monétaire, selon (*i*) le type de politique budgétaire (dépenses ou impôts nets), (*ii*) la force relative des effets d'offre de la politique fiscale et de ses effets de demande et (*iii*) le degré d'accommodation de la banque centrale. L'analyse repose sur deux courbes IS, deux courbes de Phillips et un comportement d'optimisation de la banque centrale. La politique budgétaire est supposée exogène. Il s'agit soit d'un choc de dépenses, qui affecte seulement la demande, soit d'un choc fiscal, qui affecte à la fois la demande et la formation des prix. Les chocs budgétaires ont lieu dans le pays 1 et on étudie leur impact sur l'écart de production et sur les prix dans les deux pays.

On montre qu'une hausse des dépenses publiques ou une baisse des impôts dans un pays produit une externalité positive sur le pays partenaire à condition que la politique monétaire soit accommodante, sauf si la politique fiscale a de puissants effets d'offre. Dans ce cas, le pays partenaire ne bénéficie pas d'une baisse du taux d'intérêt (puisque la banque centrale fait en sorte que le taux d'intérêt varie peu) tandis qu'il souffre d'une baisse de compétitivité-prix.

Si la banque centrale n'est pas accommodante, alors les externalités budgétaires sont généralement négatives : en cas d'expansion budgétaire, le taux d'intérêt de l'union augmente jusqu'à ce que la demande agrégée revienne à son niveau de référence, ce qui entraîne une baisse d'activité dans le pays partenaire. Cependant l'externalité peut être positive dans le cas d'une baisse d'impôt parce que la désinflation induite limite la hausse du taux d'intérêt, ou même conduit à une baisse du taux d'intérêt.

La libéralisation financière pourrait bien avoir affaibli les effets demande de la politique budgétaire, puisque les ménages peuvent plus facilement déconnecter leur consommation de leurs revenus disponibles courants. Ceci a d'importantes implications pour les externalités de politique budgétaire. L'externalité produite par une relance des dépenses publiques pourrait être positive qu'avant, tandis que l'importance relative croissante des effets d'offre pourrait avoir retourné les externalités de politique fiscale, une baisse d'impôts ayant un effet négatif sur la production des pays partenaires, en particulier si la banque centrale lisse les variations du taux d'intérêt.

Résumé court

On développe ici un modèle simple statique à deux pays pour analyser les externalités à très court terme de la politique budgétaire en union monétaire, selon (*i*) le type de politique budgétaire (dépenses ou impôts nets), (*ii*) la force relative des effets d'offre de la politique fiscale et de ses effets de demande et (*iii*) le degré d'accomodation de la banque centrale. On montre qu'une hausse des dépenses publiques ou une baisse des impôts dans un pays produit une externalité positive sur le pays partenaire à condition que la politique monétaire soit accommodante, sauf si la politique fiscale a de forts effets d'offre. Si la banque centrale n'est pas accommodante, alors les externalités budgétaires sont généralement négatives : en cas d'expansion budgétaire, le taux d'intérêt de l'union augmente jusqu'à ce que la demande agrégée revienne à son niveau de référence, ce qui entraîne une baisse d'activité dans le pays partenaire. Cependant l'externalité peut être positive dans le cas d'une baisse d'impôt parce que la désinflation induite limite la hausse du taux d'intérêt, ou même conduit à une baisse du taux d'intérêt. Si la libéralisation financière a affaibli les effets demande de la politique budgétaire, alors les externalités budgétaires pourraient bien elles aussi avoir été affaiblies, voire renversées dans le cas des externalités fiscales.

Classification JEL: E61, E62, F41.

Mots Clefs : Politique budgétaire, externalités, court terme, union monétaire.

SHORT-TERM FISCAL SPILLOVERS IN A MONETARY UNION

Agnès BÉNASSY-QUÉRÉ¹

1 Introduction

One popular view concerning macroeconomic policy in the European Monetary Union is that the ECB should deal with aggregate shocks whereas national governments should concentrate on idiosyncratic shocks. Still, this simple division of labor encounters several difficulties.

First, the ECB will react to aggregate shocks only to the extent that this does not contradict the objective of keeping inflation close to 2%. If there are only demand shocks, stabilizing output amounts to stabilizing the inflation rate. This is no longer true if there are supply shocks. For instance, a negative supply shock leads output to fall and inflation to increase. The ECB will likely react by raising rather than reducing its interest rate, which will negatively impact on both demand and supply through reduced capital accumulation.

Second, monetary policy is not a perfect substitute for fiscal policy. Indeed, monetary policy impacts on output and prices with long lags. Fiscal policy can act more quickly depending on the way it is implemented. Hence, in the case of an aggregate, negative demand shock, there is still some room for an aggregate fiscal response by Member States provided it is implemented quickly, for instance through automatic stabilizers.

Third, a fiscal impulse in one country may impact on output and prices in another country, due to higher imports (trade channel), lower price competitiveness (relative price channel) or to a rise in the common interest rate (interest-rate channel). The first two spillovers are positive whereas the third one is negative. Hence, the net spillover impact of a fiscal shock in one Member State is ambiguous. But whatever the sign, the very existence of a fiscal spillover asks for some form of coordination among member states. Such coordination is needed for symmetric shocks (because the Nash equilibrium does not deliver the best aggregate fiscal response in this case) but also for idiosyncratic shocks (because reacting to one specific shock in one country could itself trigger a shock in another country).

¹CEPII (agnes.benassy@cepii.fr). This paper was prepared within the project "Tax/benefit systems and growth potential of the EU" (TAXBEN, Project no. SCS8-CT-2004-502639), financed by the European Commission under FP6 of DG Research. I am grateful to Kari Alho, Markku Kotilainen, Pierre Villa and to the participants of the TAXBEN workshop in Helsinki in September 2005, for helpful discussions. The usual disclaimer applies.

Last, but not least, the effectiveness of fiscal policy is a much debated issue. The recent literature reviews provided by Hemming et al. (2002) and Briotti (2005) conclude that, at least in the very short run, fiscal policies have some Keynesian effects, i.e. a fiscal expansion leads to a rise in output, although multipliers are generally found to be small. More importantly, it is possible to draw a list of factors that may increase the impact of fiscal policy. For instance, in the case of a fiscal expansion, the positive impact on output is higher when there is excess capacity, monetary policy is accommodating, additional public expenditures are productive and not a direct substitute for private spending, removed taxes were distorsionary, government debt is low, prices are sticky.

These conditions may not apply the same way to cross-country Keynesian multipliers. For instance, a fiscal expansion in country 1 is likely to have more positive impact on the output of country 2 if the price level in country 1 reacts upward (which will raise the price competitiveness of country 2) provided the common central bank does not react too much to this price increase. Hence, price stickiness may rise the direct multiplier while reducing the cross-multiplier.

In addition, the spillover may depend on whether the fiscal policy is carried out through expenditures or taxes, for several reasons. First, the relative impact of expenditure shocks and tax shocks at home is debated. Due to the marginal propensity to save, the Keynesian multiplier is lower for net tax shocks than for spending (consumption and investment) shocks, and this is what macroeconometric models generally find. However tax and spending shocks may have different implications for households and investors' expectations, hence for private demand; they may also have different supply effects. Indeed, a tax cut is likely to positively impact on aggregate supply, which raises permanent income and/or reduces the inflationary impact of the shock in the short run. Relying on a VAR methodology, Mountford and Uhlig (2005) find the tax multiplier to be higher than spending one. Second, as explained by Alho (2001), a tax shock in one country impacts on output in another country through both a demand channel and a supply channel. For instance, a tax cut will increase domestic prices through higher domestic demand, but reduce them through lower costs. The net effect on domestic prices, hence on foreign competitiveness, is ambiguous. Conversely an expenditure expansion raises foreign competitiveness without ambiguity.

This paper intends to analyze the sign of short-term fiscal spillovers in a monetary union depending on (*i*) the way fiscal policy is implemented (expenditures versus taxes), (*ii*) the strength of the supply-side channel of tax policies, and (*iii*) the extent of central bank accommodation. The recent evolution of prices in the Eurozone has been shown quite sensitive to tax policies in the large economies of the area, (see, for instance, de Bandt et al. 2004). Simultaneously, the ECB has proved relatively flexible concerning short-run movements of aggregate inflation, especially for one-off variations due to oil hikes or tax shocks. Hence, it is necessary to reconsider fiscal spillovers within such context where a tax increase in country 1 may impact positively on country 2 just because price competitiveness is improved in country 2 while the central bank reacts smoothly to higher inflation.

The paper is based on a simple, two-country model inspired from Alho (2001), Uhlig (2002) and Andersen (2002). The model is detailed in Section 2. As a first step, the central bank is assumed to fully stabilize demand shocks. The results for fiscal spillovers are detailed in Section 3. In Section 4, the central bank is no longer assumed to fully stabilize demand shocks. The impact of partial monetary accommodation on fiscal spillovers is derived. Section 5 concludes.

2 The model

The model used here is based on Alho (2001), Uhlig (2002) and Andersen (2002). Uhlig proposes a very simple model which is a static version of the Clarida-Gali-Gertler (1999) setting. There are three main differences here compared to Uhlig. First, only two identical countries are considered, whereas Uhlig studies a monetary union with n countries. Second, public expenditures are distinguished from net taxes.² Third, spillovers between the two countries are included in the model not only through the common monetary policy (as in Uhlig), but also through the real exchange rate (as in Alho). Indeed, relative price variations have been an important feature of the European monetary union since 1999 (see, for instance, Busetti et al. 2006).

The model describes the very short-term impact of fiscal policy. Hence the deviation of inflation from baseline is identified to the deviation of the price level from baseline. There are two equations for each country : an IS curve, and a Phillips curve. Indexing the countries by 1 and 2 respectively, the IS curves are given by :

$$y_1 = -\phi(r - p_1^e) + g_1 - \zeta t_1 + \alpha y_2 - \beta(p_1 - p_2)$$
(1)

$$y_2 = -\phi(r - p_2^e) + g_2 - \zeta t_2 + \alpha y_1 + \beta(p_1 - p_2)$$
(2)

with $\phi, \beta > 0$ and $0 < \alpha, \zeta < 1$. y_i denotes the logarithm of output in country i (i=1,2), p_i the logarithm of its price level, g_i a shock on public expenditures, t_i a shock on net taxes, p_i^e expected inflation (identical to the expected price level) and r is the nominal interest rate. All variables are expressed as deviations from steady state, either in relative terms (y_i, p_i, g_i, t_i) or in absolute terms (r). Hence, y_i can be interpreted as the output gap. Since both countries are in a monetary union, the nominal interest rate r is the same and therefore does not bear any country subscript. The real exchange rate of country 1 against country 2 is $p_1 - p_2$.

²public transfers are considered as negative taxes.

It is assumed here that fiscal shocks can be observed and that their price implications are perfectly understood by private agents. Hence price expectations are perfect. In our single-period model, this assumption writes : $p_i^e = p_i$.

The nominal rigidity comes from staggered labor contracts : in the short term, only a fraction n of wages adjust. The Phillips curve is derived from a simple WS-PS setting. The producer price level pp_i is assumed to be a constant mark-up on unit labor costs with constant labor productivity (only fiscal shocks will be considered in this model). Hence the producer price deviation from baseline is the following :

$$pp_i = w_i + t_i^w \tag{3}$$

where w_i denotes the gross wage level and t^w social contributions paid by employers. The wage level is assumed to depend on the (perfectly expected) consumer price index p_i (which includes VAT), on other net taxes paid by employees t^y (social contributions, personal income tax, minus social transfers received), and on the output gap y_i :

$$w_i = n(p_i + t_i^y + \gamma y_i) \tag{4}$$

with 0 < n < 1 and $\gamma > 0$. Finally, the consumer price index is a weighted average of tax-included domestic prices and foreign prices, accounting for the residence principle of VAT :

$$p_1 = (1 - \nu)(pp_1 + t_1^{vat}) + \nu(p_2 - t_2^{vat} + t_1^{vat})$$
(5)

$$p_2 = (1-\nu)(pp_2 + t_2^{vat}) + \nu(p_1 - t_1^{vat} + t_2^{vat})$$
(6)

with $0 < \nu < 1$, and t_i^{vat} denoting consumption taxes. Putting together these equation leads to the following Phillips curve :

$$p_1 = \lambda t_1 + \mu y_1 + \theta p_2 \tag{7}$$

$$p_2 = \lambda t_2 + \mu y_2 + \theta p_1 \tag{8}$$

with $t_i = (nt_i^y + t_i^w + t_i^{vat}) + \frac{\nu}{1-\nu}(t_i^{vat} - t_j^{vat}), \lambda = \frac{1-\nu}{1-n(1-\nu)} > 0, \mu = n\gamma\lambda > 0$ and $\theta = \frac{\nu}{1-\nu}\lambda > 0.$

 t_i is an aggregate measure of tax policy. Note that all taxes would have the same impact on prices in the absence of nominal rigidities (n = 1). With wage rigidities, a transfer of taxes from employers' to employees' contributions $(t^w = -t^y < 0)$ leads to a fall in inflation in the short run. Conversely, a transfer of taxes from employees' contributions or personal income taxes to VAT $t^y = -t^{vat} < 0$ has a positive impact on inflation in the short run. In the following, only aggregate net taxes will be considered.³

 θ is an increasing function of ν (openness) and of n (wage indexation). If $\nu = 1$ or if n = 1, then $\theta = 1$ and the world price level is not determined. λ and μ are also increasing in n, but they are decreasing ν . This means that, in a more open country, domestic factors (t_i, y_i) have relatively less impact on domestic prices than imported inflation. In the following, it will be assumed that $0 < \theta < 1$, i.e. a 1% increase in imported prices has a less-than-1% impact on domestic prices.

From Equations (7) and (8), it is possible to derive the real exchange rate (or relative price) between the two countries $p_1 - p_2$:

$$(1+\theta)(p_1 - p_2) = \lambda(t_1 - t_2) + \mu(y_1 - y_2)$$
(9)

A tax cut has two competing effects on domestic prices : they fall through a direct, supply effect ; and they rise due to higher domestic demand (indirect, demand effect). The net effect of a tax cut on foreign country's competitiveness is positive if the demand effect dominates the supply effect. In a similar way, the output-gap differential $y_1 - y_2$ is given by :

$$(1+\alpha)(y_1-y_2) = -(2\beta - \phi)(p_1 - p_2) + (g_1 - g_2) - \zeta(t_1 - t_2)$$
(10)

The relative price between the two countries has an ambiguous impact on the output-gap differential. On the one hand, a rise in the relative price of country 1 leads to a loss of competitiveness in this country, hence in a drop on its relative output gap. On the other hand, if prices rise more in country 1, then the real interest rate is lower in this country (because the nominal interest rate is the same in the two countries). This leads to higher output gap in country 1. Both effects have been at play in the European monetary union, but the former is likely to dominate, which will be assumed in the following (i.e. we assume that $2\beta > \phi$).

The loss function of the central bank is standard :

³For simplification, the same aggregate measure of net taxes is included in the IS curve and in the Phillips curve. Hence we discard the fact that a rise in VAT does not affect price competitiveness. To account for this, $p_1 - p_2$ would need to be replaced by $(p_1 - p_2) - (t_1^{vat} - p_2^{vat})$ in the IS curve.

$$L = \frac{1}{2} \left(p^2 + \chi y^2 \right)$$
 (11)

where y and p denote average output gaps and price levels in the two countries and $\chi > 0$. Average output gaps and prices can be derived from Equations (1), (2), (7) and (8) :

$$(1-\alpha)y = -\phi(r-p) + g - \zeta t \tag{12}$$

$$(1-\theta)p = \lambda t + \mu y \tag{13}$$

where g and t denote average spending and tax deviations from baseline. Plugging Equation (13) into the loss function, and considering tax policies in the two countries as given, one gets the following first-order condition :

$$y = -\frac{\mu\lambda}{\mu^2 + \chi(1-\theta)^2}t \tag{14}$$

If $\lambda = 0$ (i.e. if $\nu = 1$, complete openness), taxes have no impact on prices and the optimal monetary policy is always to keep aggregate output at its baseline level y = 0, as in Uhlig (2002). However if $\lambda > 0$, a negative tax shock leads the central bank to only partly stabilize output because of the fall in the aggregate price index. This can be seen by recovering the average price level from Equations (13) and (14) :

$$p = \frac{\lambda \chi (1-\theta)}{\mu^2 + \chi (1-\theta)^2} t \tag{15}$$

Equation (15) shows that, if $\lambda > 0$, the average price will fall following a tax cut⁴, and that the fall in prices will be larger the higher the relative weight of output stabilization χ in the loss function. Indeed, in the case of a large χ , the positive impact of the tax cut on aggregate output leads to an interest-rate increase despite the direct, supply effect of the tax cut. This reinforces the price reduction.

Finally, the interest rate can be recovered from Equation (12) :

$$\phi r = \phi p - (1 - \alpha)y + g - \zeta t = g + \left(\frac{(1 - \alpha)\mu + \phi\chi(1 - \theta)^2}{\mu^2 + \chi(1 - \theta)^2}\lambda - \zeta\right)t \quad (16)$$

⁴remember that $0 < \theta < 1$.

Equation (16) shows that the optimal monetary reaction to a positive shock on aggregate public expenditures g is an interest-rate increase, whereas this is not necessarily the case with a negative tax shock t. The interest rate rises following a tax cut if the demand effect dominates the supply effect, hence if :

$$\lambda < \zeta \frac{\mu^2 + \chi (1-\theta)^2}{(1-\alpha)\mu + \phi \chi (1-\theta)^2}$$

Since the right hand-side of this inequality is positive, this condition is met if $\lambda = 0$. In this case, the central bank reacts the same way to a negative tax shock as to a positive spending shock. The only difference is the direct tax multiplier ζ which is smaller than the direct spending multiplier (1 by assumption).

3 Tax and spending spillovers

In this model, there are four ways the output gap of country 2 is affected by fiscal policy shocks in country 1 : (i) the income channel (αy_1) , (ii) the competitiveness channel $(\beta(p_1 - p_2))$, (iii) the imported inflation channel (ϕp_2) and (iv) the interest-rate channel $(-\phi r)$. A positive shock on public expenditures in country 1 has a positive impact on the output gap of country 2 through the first three channels but a negative one through the fourth channel. A tax cut in country 1 also has a positive impact on the output gap in country 2 through the income channel, but the spillovers through the three other channels are ambiguous. Since the two countries are identical, the model can be solved through considering variables in sums and differences :

Output gaps :

$$\left(\mu^2 + \chi (1-\theta)^2\right) (y_1 + y_2) = -\lambda \mu (t_1 + t_2)$$
(17)

$$(1 + \alpha + \Gamma \mu) (y_1 - y_2) = -(\Gamma \lambda + \zeta) (t_1 - t_2) + (g_1 - g_2)$$
(18)

with

$$\Gamma = \frac{2\beta - \phi}{1 + \theta}$$

 Γ is positive if a domestic price increase has a negative impact on the domestic output gap because the negative impact through competitiveness decline (2 β) dominates the positive impact of the fall in the real interest rate (ϕ), which is assumed here.

Prices :

$$\left(\mu^2 + \chi(1-\theta)^2\right)(p_1 + p_2) = \lambda \chi(1-\theta)^2(t_1 + t_2)$$
(19)

$$\Theta(p_1 - p_2) = (\lambda(1 + \alpha) - \mu\zeta)(t_1 - t_2) + \mu(g_1 - g_2)$$
(20)

with

$$\Theta = (1+\theta)(1+\alpha+\Gamma\mu)$$

To the extent that $\Gamma > 0$, we also have $\Theta > 0$. Here fiscal shocks are assumed to come only from country 1, hence $g_2 = t_2 = 0$, $g = g_1/2$ and $t = t_1/2$. The output gaps and price levels of the two countries can be derived from Equations (17) to (20) :

$$y_1 = -\left(\frac{\lambda\mu}{\mu^2 + \chi(1-\theta)^2} + \frac{\Gamma\lambda + \zeta}{1+\alpha+\Gamma}\right)\frac{t_1}{2} + \frac{1}{1+\alpha+\Gamma}\frac{g_1}{2}$$
(21)

$$y_2 = -\left(\frac{\lambda\mu}{\mu^2 + \chi(1-\theta)^2} - \frac{\Gamma\lambda + \zeta}{1+\alpha+\Gamma}\right)\frac{t_1}{2} - \frac{1}{1+\alpha+\Gamma}\frac{g_1}{2}$$
(22)

$$p_1 = \left(\frac{\lambda\chi(1+\theta)^2}{\mu^2 + \chi(1-\theta)^2} + \frac{\lambda(1+\alpha) - \mu\zeta}{\Theta}\right)\frac{t_1}{2} + \frac{\mu}{\Theta}\frac{g_1}{2}$$
(23)

$$p_2 = \left(\frac{\lambda\chi(1+\theta)^2}{\mu^2 + \chi(1-\theta)^2} - \frac{\lambda(1+\alpha) - \mu\zeta}{\Theta}\right)\frac{t_1}{2} - \frac{\mu}{\Theta}\frac{g_1}{2}$$
(24)

The spillover effect of a positive spending shock is clearly negative. This is because the central bank completely stabilizes the average output gap : it raises the interest rate until the average output gap comes back to baseline. Both output gaps and prices rise in country 1 (where the shock takes place) but fall in country 2.

By contrast, the spillover effect of a tax shock is ambiguous. A tax cut in in country 1 has a positive impact on the output gap of country 2 if the disinflation effect of the tax cut is large enough for the central bank to react by an interest-rate reduction or smooth increase and if this disinflation in country 1 does not have too much a negative impact on country 2 through a loss in competitiveness loss :

$$\frac{\lambda\mu}{\mu^2 + \chi(1-\theta)^2} > \frac{\Gamma\lambda + \zeta}{1+\alpha + \Gamma\mu}$$

Note that this condition never applies if $\lambda = 0$. In this case, the central bank raises its interest rate until aggregate output is fully stabilized. By contrast, a fiscal expansion always raises output in the country undertaking this policy (here country 1), whether it comes through an spending increase or a tax cut.

Turning to the impact of fiscal policies on prices, Equations (23) and (24) show that a positive spending shock in country 1 leads to a price increase in country 1 but a price decrease in country 2. A tax cut in country 1 has an ambiguous effect in both countries. Prices fall in country 1 if λ is sufficiently high compared to ζ :

$$\lambda \left(\frac{\chi (1-\theta^2)}{\mu^2 + \chi (1-\theta)^2} + \frac{1+\alpha}{\Theta} \right) > \frac{\mu \zeta}{\Theta}$$

If $\lambda = 0$, this condition is never met and a tax cut raises domestic prices. In country 2, the price level falls if the following condition applies :

$$\lambda \left(\frac{\chi (1-\theta^2)}{\mu^2 + \chi (1-\theta)^2} - \frac{1+\alpha}{\Theta} \right) > -\frac{\mu \zeta}{\Theta}$$

If $\lambda = 0$, this condition is always met and a tax cut in country 1 makes prices fall in country 2.

The results are summarized in Table 1. For $\lambda = 0$, the impact of a fiscal expansion is the same whether such policy is implemented through an expenditure increase or a tax cut : output and prices rise in country 1 (where the shock takes place) and fall in country 2. For $\lambda > 0$, the results diverge between expenditure shocks (which have the same impact as for $\lambda = 0$) and for tax shocks (which now have an ambiguous impact except for the output gap of country 1). A fiscal expansion in country 1 is less painful for country 2 (in terms of the output gap) in the case of a tax cut if the disinflation impact of the tax cut has a small (negative) impact on country 2's competitiveness compared to the (positive) impact through the fall in the interest rate. Note that this will likely be the case following a cut in VAT, because in this case there is no impact on competitiveness. Conversely, a VAT increase in country 1 will raise the interest rate without improving the price competitiveness of country 2.

Table 1 – Impact of a fiscal expansion in country 1

	Spending	$s \text{ shock } (g_1 > 0)$	Tax shock $(t_1 < 0)$		
	$\lambda = 0$	$\lambda > 0$	$\lambda = 0$	$\lambda > 0$	
y_1	+	+	+	+	
y_2	-	-	-	+/-	
p_1	+	+	+	+/-	
p_2	-	-	-	+/-	

Within the European monetary union, the competitiveness effect is likely to dominate for countries which are highly integrated with the countries undertaking the tax cut, whereas the interest-rate channel is likely to dominate for other countries. For instance, a tax cut in Germany will be more painful than a spending expansion for France, Belgium, Austria and the Netherlands, because of German's increase in competitiveness. Conversely, further away countries like Spain or Ireland would perhaps suffer less from a tax cut than from an expenditure rise in Germany. Of course, the reverse applies in the case of a tax increase. The problem with this view is that it is at odds with the empirical literature which generally finds either no fiscal spillovers or positive fiscal spillovers.⁵ This possibility is ruled out in our framework for expenditure shocks because the central bank fully stabilizes demand shocks. To close the gap between the model and empirical results, it is necessary to relax the assumption of full stabilization of demand shocks by the central bank.

4 Interest rate smoothing

Empirical research on the behavior of central banks generally finds the interest rate to be less volatile than the optimal interest rate derived from an objective function like (11).⁶ The rationale for such interest-rate smoothing is summarized by Clarida et al. (1999). One possibility is that the central bank is uncertain for instance about the parameters of the economy (Brainard, 1969). Another possibility is that it wants to influence the interest-rate term structure (Rotemberg and Woodford, 1997). A third reason is its fear of disrupting financial markets by erratic interest-rate variations (Goodfriend, 1991). A final explanation is disagreement among policy-makers.

One way to introduce interest-rate smoothing in the model is to include the square deviations of the interest rate from baseline in the loss function of the central bank :

$$L = \frac{1}{2} \left(p^2 + \chi y^2 + \rho r^2 \right)$$
 (25)

with $\rho \ge 0$. The first order condition now leads to :

⁵see, for instance, Bénassy-Quéré, Cimadomo and Mignon, 2006.

⁶See, for instance, Rotemberg and Woodford, 1997.

$$\Psi y = -\left(\frac{\mu\lambda}{(1-\theta)^2} + \frac{\rho}{\phi^2}\Omega\Lambda\right)t + \frac{\rho}{\phi^2}\Omega g$$
(26)

with

$$\Psi = \frac{\mu^2}{(1-\theta)^2} + \chi + \frac{\rho}{\phi^2} \Omega^2 > 0$$
$$\Omega = 1 - \alpha - \frac{\phi\mu}{1-\theta}$$
$$\Lambda = \zeta - \frac{\phi\lambda}{1-\theta}$$

Note that Ψ is a positive function of the smoothing parameter ρ . Ω can be either positive or negative. It is positive if a positive aggregate expansion (g > 0) has more impact on aggregate output directly $(1 - \alpha)$ than indirectly through price increase which reduces the real interest rate for a given nominal rate $(\frac{\phi\mu}{1-\theta})$. In the following, we assume $\Omega > 0$. Finally, the sign of Λ depends on the relative strength of supply-side and demand-side effects of fiscal policy. It is positive if demand-side effects are prominent.

If $\rho = 0$, then Equation (26) is equivalent to Equation (14) : the central bank completely stabilizes a shock on public expenditure but incompletely a shock on net taxes. If $\rho > 0$, then $\partial y/\partial g > 0$: now the central bank only partially stabilizes expenditure shocks. The interest rate goes as follows :

$$\phi r = \left[-\Lambda \left(1 - \frac{\rho \Omega^2}{\Psi \phi^2} \right) + \frac{\Omega \mu \lambda}{\Psi (1 - \theta)^2} \right] t + \left(1 - \frac{\rho \Omega^2}{\psi \phi^2} \right) g$$
(27)

If $\rho = 0$, then Equation (27) is equivalent to Equation (16). However if $\rho > 0$, then the interest-rate increase after a positive shock on public expenditures is reduced. The impact of interest-rate smoothing on $\partial r/\partial t$ depends on Λ . If $\Lambda > 0$ (demand-side effects prominent), then more interest-rate smoothing (a higher ρ) means that the interest rate rises less or falls more following a tax cut. Conversely, if $\Lambda < 0$, then a higher ρ means that the interest rate will rise more or fall less following a tax cut.

Finally, the average price level is given by :

$$(1-\theta)p = \frac{\mu\rho\Omega}{\Psi\phi^2}g + \left(\lambda - \frac{\mu^2\lambda}{(1-\theta)^2\Psi} - \frac{\mu\rho\Omega\Lambda}{\Psi\phi^2}\right)t$$
(28)

The aggregate price level rises in the case of an aggregate positive expenditure shock. Its reaction to a tax cut is ambiguous. If $\Lambda > 0$ (demand-side effects prominent), then a higher ρ means that the aggregate price level will increase more or fall less than in the absence of interest smoothing. If $\Lambda < 0$, the price level increases less or falls more following a tax cut. We now turn to the impact of a fiscal policy taking place in country 1 on output gaps and prices in both countries. Like in Section 3, this is done by writing the variables in sums and differences.

output gaps

$$\Psi(y_1 + y_2) = -\left(\frac{\mu\lambda}{(1-\theta)^2} + \frac{\rho}{\phi^2}\Omega\Lambda\right)(t_1 + t_2) + \frac{\rho}{\phi^2}\Omega(g_1 + g_2)$$
(29)

$$(1 - \alpha + \Gamma \mu) (y_1 - y_2) = -(\Gamma \lambda + \zeta) (t_1 - t_2) + (g_1 - g_2)$$
(30)

Output gaps in the two countries can now be derived, assuming $g_2 = t_2 = 0$:

$$y_{1} = \left(-\frac{1}{\Psi}\left[\frac{\mu\lambda}{(1-\theta)^{2}} + \frac{\rho\Omega}{\phi^{2}}\Lambda\right] - \frac{\Gamma\lambda + \zeta}{1+\alpha+\Gamma\mu}\right)\frac{t_{1}}{2} + \left(\frac{\rho\Omega}{\phi^{2}} + \frac{1}{1+\alpha+\Gamma\mu}\right)\frac{g_{1}}{2}$$
(31)

$$y_{2} = \left(-\frac{1}{\Psi}\left[\frac{\mu\lambda}{(1-\theta)^{2}} + \frac{\rho\Omega}{\phi^{2}}\Lambda\right] + \frac{\Gamma\lambda + \zeta}{1+\alpha+\Gamma\mu}\right)\frac{t_{1}}{2} + \left(\frac{\rho\Omega}{\phi^{2}} - \frac{1}{1+\alpha+\Gamma\mu}\right)\frac{g_{1}}{2}$$
(32)

The domestic impact of a positive spending shock in country 1 stays positive, but the spillover on country 2 is now ambiguous. It is negative as in Section 3 if :

$$\rho < \frac{\phi^2}{\Omega(1+\alpha+\Gamma\mu)}$$

If $\rho = 0$, this condition is always met, which is consistent with previous results. If $\rho > 0$ (interest-smoothing case), a positive expenditure shock in country 1 can have a positive impact on the output gap of country 2. When ρ becomes very large (full monetary accommodation), the spillover effect is positive since the interest rate does not move following the shock and the competitiveness of country 2 necessarily rises.

If $\Lambda > 0$, i.e. if demand-side effects dominate supply-side effects, then a tax cut in country 1 has a positive impact on the output gap of country 1 and an ambiguous impact on the output gap of country 2. In this context, a higher ρ (interest smoothing parameter) leads to higher expansionary impact of the tax cut in country 1 and either more expansion or less recession in country 2, because the central bank refrains from raising the interest rate.

Now, if $\Lambda < 0$, a tax cut has an ambiguous impact on the output gap in both countries. A higher ρ now means that a tax cut in country 1 will be less expansionary for country 1 and lead to either less expansion or more recession in country 2. This is because now the central bank refrains to *lower* the interest rate.

When ρ becomes very large (full accommodation by the central bank), both countries output gaps react in the same way to fiscal shocks in country 1 : a rise in spending increases the output gap in both countries by the same amount, and a tax cut in country 1 has a positive or negative impact on the output gap of both countries of the same amount, depending on the sign of Λ : a tax cut raises the output gap in both countries if $\Lambda > 0$ whereas it reduces it in both countries if $\Lambda < 0$. In the latter case, the tax cut is disinflationary but the central bank does not reduce the interest rate accordingly. Hence the real interest rate rises which dominates the direct, demand effect of the tax cut. We now turn to the impact of the shocks on price levels.

Prices :

The sum and difference variables are given by the following relationships :

$$(1-\theta)(p_1+p_2) = \left(\lambda - \frac{\mu^2 \lambda}{(1-\theta)\Psi} - \frac{\mu \rho \Omega \Lambda}{\Psi \phi^2}\right)(t_1+t_2) + \frac{\mu \rho \Omega}{\Psi \phi^2}(g_1+g_2) \quad (33)$$

$$\Theta(1-\theta)(p_1-p_2) = (\lambda(1+\alpha) - \mu\zeta)(t_1-t_2) + \mu(g_1-g_2)$$
(34)

Assuming $g_2 = t_2 = 0$, we get :

$$p_{1} = \left(\frac{\lambda}{1-\theta} - \frac{\lambda\mu^{2}}{(1-\theta)^{2}\Psi} - \frac{\mu\rho\Omega\Lambda}{(1-\theta)\Psi\phi^{2}} + \frac{\lambda(1+\alpha) - \mu\zeta}{\Theta}\right)\frac{t_{1}}{2} + \left(\frac{\mu\rho\Omega}{(1-\theta)\phi^{2}\Psi} + \frac{\mu}{\Theta}\right)\frac{g_{1}}{2}$$
(35)

$$p_{2} = \left(\frac{\lambda}{1-\theta} - \frac{\lambda\mu^{2}}{(1-\theta)^{2}\Psi} - \frac{\mu\rho\Omega\Lambda}{(1-\theta)\Psi\phi^{2}} - \frac{\lambda(1+\alpha) - \mu\zeta}{\Theta}\right)\frac{t_{1}}{2} + \left(\frac{\mu\rho\Omega}{(1-\theta)\phi^{2}\Psi} - \frac{\mu}{\Theta}\right)\frac{g_{1}}{2}$$
(36)

A positive spending shock in country 1 has a positive impact on prices in country 1. The impact on prices in country 2 is also negative as in Section 3 if the reaction of the central bank is strong enough, more precisely if :

$$\rho < \frac{(1-\theta)\phi^2\Psi}{\mu\Omega\Theta}$$

A tax cut in country 1 can either raise or reduce prices in country 1 as well as in country 2. For a very large value of ρ (muted monetary policy), the impact is the same in both countries and of the sign of Λ . If $\Lambda > 0$, then demand-side effects are prominent and prices rise in both countries; if $\Lambda < 0$, then supply-side effects are prominent and prices fall in both countries.

The results are summarized in Table 2. From this table, it is possible to conclude that tax spillovers are positive when the central bank accommodates the shock, except if fiscal expansion is carried out through a tax cut which has large supply-side effects. If the central bank does not accommodate, fiscal spillovers are less likely to be negative if fiscal policies are carried out through net taxes than if it comes through public spending shocks. Knowing whether demand-side or supply-side effects dominate is especially relevant in the case of tax shocks and if the central bank accommodates fiscal shocks. In this case, the signs of both direct and cross-country multipliers are reversed depending on which effect dominates.

In practice, the central bank is likely to behave in-between full accommodation and full stabilization, hence with a finite $\rho > 0$. In this case, Table 2 shows that fiscal spillovers are ambiguous, but they are likely to be less negative (or more positive) if (*i*) fiscal policy is carried out through net taxes rather than public spending, and (*ii*) demand-side effects are prominent. Conversely, fiscal adjustment in one countrily is likely to be more costly (or less favorable) to partner countries if such adjustment is carried out through a tax increase and if demand-side effects are prominent.

It is often argued that due to financial liberalization, households inter-temporal optimization is now possible and fiscal multipliers are lower than in the past. If this is the case, demandside effects of fiscal policies are reduced whereas supply-side effects are unchanged. In our model, this means that Λ has been declining. To the extent that the ECB does not fully stabilize demand shocks, this means lower (positive) spillovers of positive spending shocks to other members of the monetary union, and perhaps the rise of negative spillovers of tax cuts. Conversely, fiscal adjustment becomes less costly to EMU partners if it is carried out through spending cuts, and a tax increase can now have a positive impact on their output in the short run (to the extent that the central bank does not raise the interest rate too much).

		Spending shock $(g_1 > 0)$						Tax shock $(t_1 < 0)$				
		$\Lambda > 0$)		$\Lambda < 0$)		$\Lambda > 0$)		$\Lambda < 0$	
ρ	0	>0	∞	0	>0	∞	0	>0	∞	0	>0	∞
y_1	+	++	+++	+	+	+	+	++	+++	++	+	-
y_2	-	+/-	+++	-	+/-	+	+/-	++/-	+++	+/-	+/	-
p_1	+	+	+	+	+	+	+/-	++/-	+	+/-	+/	-
p_2	-	+/-	+	-	+/-	+	+/-	++/-	+	+/-	+/	-

Table 2 – Impact of a fiscal expansion in country 1, interest-rate smoothing

Note : the magnitudes should not be compared across the shocks but across parameter values.

5 Conclusion

In this paper, a simple, two-country, static model is developed in order to analyze short-run fiscal spillovers in a monetary union, depending on (*i*) the way fiscal policy is implemented (expenditures versus net taxes), (*ii*) the strength of the supply-side channel of tax policies compared to the demand-side channel, and (*iii*) the extent of central bank accommodation.

It is shown that both a spending expansion and a tax cut produce positive spillovers on foreign output provided the central bank accommodates the shock, except if tax cuts have large supply-side effects. In this case, the foreign country does not benefit from a fall in the interest rate (because of interest-rate smoothing), whereas it suffers from loss in price competitiveness.

If the central bank does not accommodate the shock, the spillovers of a fiscal expansion are generally negative : the common interest rate rises until aggregate demand is perfectly stabilized, which entails an output loss in the foreign country. However fiscal spillovers can be positive in the case of a tax cut because induced disinflation reduces or even reverses the reaction of the central bank.

Due to financial liberalization, it is possible that demand-side channels of fiscal policy have become less powerful compared to supply-side channels, because of higher ability of households to disconnect consumption from current disposable income. This has important implication for fiscal spillovers. For a spending expansion, the spillover effect is likely to become less positive. In turn, the rising importance of supply-side effects relative to demand-side effects is likely to turn positive spillovers into negative ones following a tax cut, at least if the central bank smooths the interest rate.

6 References

- ALHO, K. (2001), "The stability pact and inefficiencies in fiscal policy making in EMU", *Public Finance and Management*, 1 (1), pp. 4-33.
- ANDERSEN, T. (2002), "Fiscal stabilization policy in a monetary union with inflation targeting", CEPR discussion paper No. 3232, February.
- DE BANDT, O., SAINT-GUILHEM, A., LE BIHAN, H. AND J. MATHERON (2004), "La persistance de l'inflation en France et dans la zone euro", *Bulletin Mensuel de la Banque de France*, July, 31-50.
- BÉNASSY-QUÉRÉ, A., CIMADOMO, J. AND V. MIGNON (2006), "Time-varying fiscal policy spillovers in the Euro area", mimeo, CEPII, April.
- BLANCHARD, O.J. AND R. PEROTTI (2002), "An empirical characterization of the dynamic effects of changes in government spending and taxes on output", *The Quarterly Journal of Economics*, 107 (4), 1329-1368.
- BRAINARD, W.C. (1967), "Uncertainty and the effectiveness of policy", *American Economic Review*, 57, 411-425.
- BRIOTTI, M.G. (2005), "Economic reactions to public finance consolidation : a survey of the literature", ECB occasional paper No. 38, October.
- BUSETTI, F., FORNI, L., HARVEY, A. AND F. VENDITTI (2006), "Inflation convergence and divergence within the European monetary union" ECB working paper No. 574, January.
- CLARIDA, R. GALÍ, J. AND M. GERTLER (1999), "The science of monetary policy : a new Keynesian perspective", *Journal of Economic Literature*, XXXVII, 1661-1707.
- GOODFRIEND, M. (1991), "Interest rates and the conduct of monetary policy", *Carnegie-Rochester Series on Public Policy*, 34, 7-37.
- HEMMING, R., KELL, M. AND S. MAHFOUZ (2002), "The effectiveness of fiscal policy in stimulating economic activity - a review of the literature", IMF working paper WP/02/208, December.
- MOUNTFORD, A. AND H. UHLIG (2005), "What are the effects of fiscal policy shocks ?", SFB 649 discussion paper 2005-039, Humboldt Universität, July.

- PEROTTI, R. (2005), "Estimating the effects of fiscal policy in OECD countries", CEPR discussion paper No. 4842, January.
- ROTEMBERG, G. AND M. WOODFORD (1997), "An optimization-based econometric framework for the evaluation of monetary policy", *in* Bernanke, B. and J. Rotemberg, eds., *NBER Macroeconomics Annual*.
- UHLIG, H. (2002), "One money but many fiscal policies in Europe : what are the consequences ?", CentER discussion paper No. 2002-32.

LIST OF WORKING PAPERS RELEASED BY CEPII¹

No	Title	Authors
2006-12	Can Firms' Location Decisions Counteract the Balassa-Samuelson Effect ?	I. Méjean
2006-11	Who's Afraid of Tax Competition? Harmless Tax Competition from the New European Member States	A. Lahrèche-Révil
2006-10	A Quantitative Assessment of the Outcome of the Doha Development Agenda	Y. Decreux & L. Fontagné
2006-09	Disparities in Pension Financing in Europe: Economic and Financial Consequences	J. Château & X. Chojnicki
2006-08	Base de données CHELEM-BAL du CEPII	H. Boumellassa & D. Ünal-Kesenci
2006-07	Deindustrialisation and the Fear of Relocations in the Industry	H. Boulhol & L. Fontagné
2006-06	A Dynamic Perspective for the Reform of the Stability and Gowth Pact	C. Deubner
2006-05	China's Emergence and the Reorganisation of Trade Flows in Asia	G. Gaulier, F. Lemoine & D. Ünal-Kesenci
2006-04	Who Pays China's Bank Restructuring Bill?	G. Ma
2006-03	Structural Determinants of the Exchange-Rate Pass- Through	G. Gaulier, A. Lahrèche-Révil & I. Méjean
2006-02	Exchange-Rate Pass-Through at the Product Level	G. Gaulier, A. Lahrèche-Révil & I. Méjean
2006-01	Je t'aime, moi non plus : Bilateral Opinions and International Trade	A.C. Disdier & T. Mayer
2005-23	World Trade Competitiveness: A Disaggregated View by Shift-Share Analysis	A. Cheptea, G. Gaulier & S. Zignago
2005-22	Chômage et réformes du marché du travail au Japon	E. Dourille-Feer

¹ Working papers are circulated free of charge as far as stocks are available; thank you to send your request to CEPII, Sylvie Hurion, 9, rue Georges-Pitard, 75015 Paris, or by fax : (33) 01 53 68 55 04 or by e-mail <u>sylvie.hurion @ cepii.fr</u>. Also available on: \\www.cepii.fr. Working papers with * are out of print. They can nevertheless be consulted and downloaded from this website.

2005-21	Profitability of Foreign and Domestic Banks in Central and Eastern Europe: Does the Mode of Entry Matter?	O. Havrylchyk & E. Jurzyk
2005-20	ECB Governance in an Enlarged Eurozone	A. Bénassy-Quéré & E. Turkisch
2005-19	What Are EU Trade Preferences Worth for Sub- Saharan Africa and Other Developing Countries?	F. Candau & S. Jean
2005-18	Binding Overhang and Tariff-Cutting Formulas	M.H. Bchir, S. Jean & D. Laborde
2005-17	International Trade and Income Distribution: Reconsidering the Evidence	I. Bensidoun, S. Jean & A. Sztulman
2005-16	China and the Relationship between the Oil Price and the Dollar	A. Bénassy-Quéré, V. Mignon & A. Penot
2005-15	Consequences of Alternative Formulas for Agricultural Tariff Cuts	S. Jean, D. Laborde & W. Martin
2005-14	Is Erosion of Tariff Preferences a Serious Concern?	A. Bouët, L. Fontagné & S. Jean
2005-13	The Consequences of Agricultural Trade Liberalization for Developing Countries: Distinguishing Between Genuine Benefits and False Hopes	J.C. Bureau, S. Jean A. Matthews
2005-12	From Bound Duties to Actual Protection: Industrial Liberalisation in the Doha Round	M.H. Bchir, L. Fontagné & S. Jean
2005-11	Impact de l'ouverture financière sur les inégalités internes dans les pays émergents	A. Bénassy-Quéré & V. Salins
2005-10	Disentangling Horizontal and Vertical Intra-Industry Trade	L. Fontagné, M. Freudenberg & G. Gaulier
2005-09	China's Integration in East Asia: Production Sharing, FDI & High-Tech Trade	G. Gaulier, F. Lemoine D. Ünal-Kesenci
2005-08	Tax Competition and Public Input	A. Bénassy-Quéré, N. Gobalraja & A. Trannoy
2005-07	Trade Liberalisation, Growth and Poverty in Senegal: A Dynamic Microsimulation CGE Model Analysis	N. Annabi, F. Cissé, J. Cockburn & B. Decaluwé
2005-06	Migration, Trade and Wages	A. Hijzen & P. Wright

2005-05	Institutional Determinants of Foreign Investment	A. Bénassy-Quéré, M. Coupet & T. Mayer
2005-04	L'économie indienne : changements structurels et perspectives à long terme	S. Chauvin & F. Lemoine
2005-03	Programme de travail du CEPII pour 2005	
2005-02	Market Access in Global and Regional Trade	T. Mayer & S. Zignago
2005-01	Real Equilibrium Exchange Rate in China	V. Coudert & C. Couharde
2004-22	A Consistent, <i>ad-valorem</i> Equivalent Measure of Applied Protection Across the World: The MAcMap- HS6 Database	A. Bouët, Y. Decreux, L. Fontagné, S. Jean & D. Laborde
2004-21	IMF in Theory: Sovereign Debts, Judicialisation and Multilateralism	J. Sgard
2004-20	The Impact of Multilateral Liberalisation on European Regions: a CGE Assessment	S. Jean & D. Laborde
2004-19	La compétitivité de l'agriculture et des industries agroalimentaires dans le Mercosur et l'Union européenne dans une perspective de libéralisation commerciale	N. Mulder, A. Vialou, B. David, M. Rodriguez & M. Castilho
2004-18	Multilateral Agricultural Trade Liberalization: The Contrasting Fortunes of Developing Countries in the Doha Round	A. Bouët, J.C. Bureau, Y. Decreux & S. Jean
2004-17	UK in or UK out? A Common Cycle Analysis between the UK and the Euro Zone	J. Garnier
2004-16	Regionalism and the Regionalisation of International Trade	G. Gaulier, S. Jean & D. Ünal-Kesenci
2004-15	The Stock-Flow Approach to the Real Exchange Rate of CEE Transition Economies	B. Egert, A. Lahrècche-Révil & K. Lommatzsch
2004-14	Vieillissement démographique, épargne et retraite : une analyse à l'aide d'un modèle d'équilibre général à agents hétérogènes	C. Bac & J. Chateau
2004-13	Burden Sharing and Exchange-Rate Misalignments within the Group of Twenty	A. Bénassy-Quéré, P. Duran-Vigneron, A. Lahrèche-Révil & V. Mignon
2004-12	Regulation and Wage Premia	S. Jean & G. Nicoletti

2004-11	The Efficiency of Fiscal Policies: a Survey of the Literature	S. Capet
2004-10	La réforme du marché du travail en Allemagne : les enseignements d'une maquette	S. Capet
2004-09	Typologie et équivalence des systèmes de retraites	P. Villa
2004-08	South – South Trade: Geography Matters	S. Coulibaly & L. Fontagné
2004-07	Current Accounts Dynamics in New EU Members: Sustainability and Policy Issues	P. Zanghieri
2004-06	Incertitude radicale et choix du modèle	P. Villa
2004-05	Does Exchange Rate Regime Explain Differences in Economic Results for Asian Countries?	V. Coudert & M. Dubert
2004-04	Trade in the Triad: How Easy is the Access to Large Markets?	L. Fontagné, T. Mayer & S. Zignago
2004-03	Programme de travail du CEPII pour 2004	
2004-02	Technology Differences, Institutions and Economic Growth: a Conditional Conditional Convergence	H. Boulhol
2004-01	Croissance et régimes d'investissement	P. Villa
2003-22	A New Look at the Feldstein-Horioka Puzzle using a Integrated Panel	A. Banerjee P. Zanghieri
2003-21	Trade Linkages and Exchange Rates in Asia :The Role of China	A. Bénassy-Quéré & A. Lahrèche-Révil
2003-20	Economic Implications of Trade Liberalization Under the Doha Round	J. Francois, H. van Meijl & F. van Tongeren
2003-19	Methodological Tools for SIA - Report of the CEPII Worshop held on 7-8 November 2002 in Brussels	
2003-18	Order Flows, Delta Hedging and Exchange Rate Dynamics	B. Rzepkowski
2003-17	Tax Competition and Foreign Direct Investment	A. Bénassy-Quéré, L. Fontagné & A. Lahrèche-Révil
2003-16	Commerce et transfert de technologies : les cas comparés de la Turquie, de l'Inde et de la Chine	F. Lemoine & D. Ünal-Kesenci
2003-15	The Empirics of Agglomeration and Trade	K. Head & T. Mayer
2003-14	Notional Defined Contribution: A Comparison of the French and German Point Systems	F. Legros

2003-13	How Different is Eastern Europe? Structure and Determinants of Location Choices by French Firms in Eastern and Western Europe	A.C. Disdier & T. Mayer
2003-12	Market Access Liberalisation in the Doha Round: Scenarios and Assessment	L. Fontagné, J.L. Guérin & S. Jean
2003-11	On the Adequacy of Monetary Arrangements in Sub-Saharian Africa	A. Bénassy-Quéré & M. Coupet
2003-10	The Impact of EU Enlargement on Member States: a CGE Approach	H. Bchir, L. Fontagné & P. Zanghieri
2003-09	India in the World Economy: Traditional Specialisations and Technology Niches	S. Chauvin & F. Lemoine
2003-08	Imitation Amongst Exchange-Rate Forecasters: Evidence from Survey Data	M. Beine, A. Bénassy-Quéré & H. Colas
2003-07	Le Currency Board à travers l'expérience de l'Argentine	S. Chauvin & P. Villa
2003-06	Trade and Convergence: Revisiting Ben-Davil	G. Gaulier
2003-05	Estimating the Fundamental Equilibrium Exchange Rate of Central and Eastern European Countries the EMU Enlargement Perspective	B. Egert & A. Lahrèche-Révil
2003-04	Skills, Technology and Growth is ICT the Key to Success?	J. Melka, L. Nayman, S. Zignago & N. Mulder
2003-03	L'investissement en TIC aux Etats-Unis et dans quelques pays européens	G. Cette & P.A. Noual
2003-02	Can Business and Social Networks Explain the Border Effect Puzzle?	P.P. Combes, M. Lafourcade & T. Mayer

CEPII DOCUMENTS DE TRAVAIL / WORKING PAPERS

Si vous souhaitez recevoir des Documents de travail, merci de remplir le coupon-réponse ci-joint et de le retourner à :

Should you wish to receive copies of the CEPII's Working papers, just fill the reply card and return it to:

Sylvie HURION – Publications CEPII – 9, rue Georges-Pitard – 75740 Paris – Fax : (33) 1.53.68.55.04 sylvie.hurion@cepii.fr

M./Mme / Mr./Mrs
Nom-Prénom / Name-First name
Titre / Title
Service / Department
Organisme / Organisation
Adresse / Address
Ville & CP / City & post code Pays / Country
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° :
Wish to receive the CEPII's Working Papers No:
Souhaite être placé sur la liste de diffusion permanente (pour les bibliothèques) <i>Wish to be placed on the standing mailing list (for Libraries</i>).